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GUY R PRICE, Esq.

ISB¹ 3125

603 S. NINTH

P.O. BOX 4971
POCATELLO, IDAHO 83205

grp 1 1@hotmail. corn
Telephone: (208)760-0490

FAX: (208)232-6647

Attorney for Plaintiff

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF IDAHO

Holly C. Owens, ) CASE NO.

)
Plaintiff, )

)
) COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR

V. ) JURY TRIAL

)
) Judge:

John Doe, aka Tim Todd; Premiere )
Credit of North America, LLC, )
Defendants. )

)
)

COMPLAINT

I. INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action for damages brought by an individual consumer for

Defendant's violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. g

1692, et seq.(hereinafter "FDCPA"), which prohibits debt collectors from

engaging in abusive, deceptive, and unfair practices; violations of the Idaho

Collection Agency Act, Idaho Code 26-2221 through 2251, (" Idaho Act"), which
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requires collection agencies to "deal openly, fairly, and honestly without

deception in the conduct of its business." Id. 26-2229A(1); and intentional

infliction of emotional distress.

2. Congress enacted the FDCPA after finding "abundant evidence of the use of

abusive, deceptive, and unfair debt collection practices by many debt collectors.

Abusive debt collection practices contribute to the number of personal

bankruptcies, to marital instability, to the loss of jobs, and to invasions of

individual privacy." 15 U.S.C. g 1692(a).

3. One purpose of the FDCPA is "to eliminate abusive debt collection practices

by debt collectors." 15 U.S.C. g 1692(e).

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. Jurisdiction of this Court arises under 15 U.S.C. g 1692k(d) and 28 U.S.C. g

1337. Declaratory relief is available pursuant to 28 U.S.C. gg 2201 and 2202.

Venue in this District is proper in that the defendants transact business here.

I I I. PARTIES

5. Plaintiff Holly C. Owens is a natural person residing in the state of Idaho.

6. Defendant Premiere Credit is a corporation engaged in the business of

collecting debts in this state with its principal place of business located in Indiana.

The principal purpose of Defendant is the collection of debts using the mails and

telephone, and Defendant regularly attempts to collect debts alleged to be due

another.
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7. Defendant John Doe, also known as Tim Todd, is a natural person employed

by Defendant Premiere Credit as a collector at all times relevant to this

complaint.

8. Defendants are "debt collectors" as defined by the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. g

1692a(6) and a "collection agency" as defined by Idaho Code 26-2222 and 2223.

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

9. Some time in or around August of 2009 Defendant Tim Todd, while employed

as a collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, began contacting Plaintiff Holly

Owens to demand payment of an alleged debt owed to the Oklahoma Student

Loan Authority.

10. Owens asked Todd to stop contacting her by phone, but Todd continued

doing so over the next few weeks.

11. On or about August 20, 2009, Defendant Tim Todd, while employed as a

collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, called Owens's home and spoke with her

thirteen-year-old son, D.O. Todd told D.O. that Owens was not paying her bills

and that if D.O. did not give Todd her cell phone number, the Owenses would

lose their home. D.O. gave Todd Plaintiff's cell phone number, and Todd began

calling Plaintiff on both her cell phone and home phone.

12. On or about August 25, 2009, Defendant Tim Todd, while employed as a

collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, contacted Julie Owens, Plaintiffs

mother-in-law, and represented to her that he was a potential employer for a job

Plaintiff had applied for and that he was calling for a job reference. Todd asked

Julie questions about Plaintiffs work skills. Todd then asked Julie why Plaintiff
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was having financial difficulties. Todd asked Julie how long Plaintiff had been

working at her place of employment, and he asked where Plaintiff worked.

13. On or about August 26, 2009, Defendant Tim Todd, while employed as a

collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, contacted Plaintiff by phone. Plaintiff

asked him how he obtained her in-laws' phone number, and Todd replied that it

was on her loan application. Plaintiff explained that it could not have been since

she did not know her in-laws at the time she applied for the loan. Todd laughed

and admitted to being caught in a lie.

14. On or about August 27, 2009, Defendant Tim Todd, while employed as a

collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, again contacted Plaintiff's in-laws

requesting more information.

15. On or about September 1, 2009, Defendant Tim Todd, while employed as a

collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, contacted Plaintiff's mother, Victoria

Mclain, and represented that he was a potential employer calling for a reference

on a job Plaintiff had applied for. Todd asked Mclain where Plaintiff worked and

how long she had worked there. Mclain provided this information to Todd.

16. Todd asked Mclain what kind of financial difficulties Plaintiff was in. Mclain

toldTodd Plaintiff had many medical bills and other debts due to the deaths of

two of her infant children and the premature birth and lengthy hospitalization of a

third. Todd asked for the details surrounding the deaths and premature birth, still

representing that he was calling for a job reference.

17. The next day, on or around September 2, 2009, Defendant Tim Todd, while

employed as a collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, contacted Plaintiff's
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employer, and asked to speak to Plaintiff regarding the importance of paying the

alleged debt. Plaintiff's employer informed Plaintiff of this contact the same day.

18. Todd began leaving messages on Plaintiff's office phone and work cell phone

threatening to expose Plaintiff as a thief to her supervisor and coworkers. Plaintiff

was forced to explain to her supervisor who Todd was and why Plaintiff was in

financial difficulty.

19. On or about September 15, 2009, Defendant Tim Todd, while employed as a

collector by Defendant Premiere Credit, contacted Plaintiff by phone again to

demand payment on the alleged debt. During this conversation, Todd asked

Plaintiff how her dead daughters must feel knowing their mother is not meeting

her obligations. He asked her if she thought they were proud of her in Heaven

knowing she was stealing from people who had loaned her money. Todd's

callous mention of Plaintiff's deceased daughters caused Plaintiff to cry, and

Todd replied, "Save your tears for someone else, sweetheart. They won't pay

your bills with me." Plaintiff told him to never call her again, and she hung up the

phone. She stopped taking phone calls from him and disconnected her home

phone.

20. As a result of the acts alleged above, Plaintiff suffered headaches, nausea,

embarrassment, lost time, strain on familial relationships, and strain on

relationships in the workplace.

V. FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Defendants' violations of 15 U.S.C. g 1692b(1)
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21. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

20 above.

22. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692b(1) which requires "a debt collector

communicating with any person other than the consumer for the purpose of

acquiring location information about the consumer" to "state that he is confirming

or correcting location information concerning the consumer."

23. Defendant Todd contacted Plaintiff's son, D.O. for the purpose of acquiring

Plaintiff's cell phone number, and Defendant Todd did not "state that he [was]

confirming or correcting location information concerning the consumer."

24. Defendant Todd contacted Plaintiff's mother-in-law for the purpose of

acquiring Plaintiff's place of employment, defined in 15 U.S.C. g 1692a(7) as

"location information." Defendant Todd did not "state that he [was] confirming or

correcting location information concerning the consumer."

25. Defendant Todd contacted Plaintiff's mother for the purpose of acquiring

Plaintiff's place of employment, defined in 15 U.S.C. g 1692a(7) as "location

information." Defendant Todd did not "state that he [was] confirming or correcting

location information concerning the consumer."

26. Therefore, Defendant Todd violated on at least three occasions 15 U.S.C. g

1692b(1).

VI. SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Defendants' violation of 15 U.S.C. g 1692b(2)

27. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

26 above.
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28. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692b(2) which prohibits "a debt collector

communicating with any person other than the consumer for the purpose of

acquiring location information about the consumer" from stating "that such

consumer owes any debt."

29. Defendant Todd contacted Plaintiff's son, D.O., for the purpose of acquiring

Plaintiff's cell phone number, and Defendant Todd stated to D.O. that D.O. and

his family were going to lose their home because Plaintiff did not pay her bills,

thus indicating that she owes a debt. Therefore, Defendant Todd violated 15

U.S.C. 5 1692b(2).

VII. THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Defendant's violation of 15 U.S.C. $1692b(3)

30. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

29 above.

31. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692b(3) which prohibits "a debt collector

communicating with any person other than the consumer for the purpose of

acquiring location information about the consumer" from communicating "with

any such person more than once."

32. Defendant Todd contacted Plaintiff's parents-in-law on or about August 25,

2009 for the purpose of acquiring the location of Plaintiff's place of employment.

Approximately two days later Defendant Todd again contacted Plaintiff's parents

in- law, at the same phone number, for the purpose of acquiring more

information. Therefore, Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692b(3).

VIII. FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
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Defendants' violations of 15 U.S.C. g 1692c(b)

33. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

32 above.

34. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692c(b) which prohibits debt collectors, "in

connection with the collection of any debt," from communicating "with any person

other than the consumer, his attorney, a consumer reporting agency.. . the

creditor, the attorney of the creditor, or the attorney of the debt collector."

35. Defendant Todd contacted multiple third parties, namely Plaintiff's son, her

parents-in-law, her mother, and her employer, without Plaintiff's prior consent.

IX. FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Defendants' violations of 15 U.S.C. g 1692d

36. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

35 above.

37. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692d which prohibits debt collectors from

engaging "in any conduct the natural consequence of which is to harass,

oppress, or abuse any person in connection with the collection of a debt."

38. Defendant Todd spoke to Plaintiff callously about Plaintiff's two deceased

children. Among other things, Defendant Todd asked Plaintiff how her "dead

daughters" must feel knowing their mother is not meeting her obligations and

whether she thought they were proud of her in Heaven knowing she was stealing

from people who had loaned her money. As Plaintiff began to cry, Defendant

Todd told her, "save your tears for someone else, sweetheart. They won't pay

your bills with me."
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39. The consequence of Defendant Todd's conduct was to harass, oppress, and

emotionally abuse Plaintiff. Therefore, Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692d.

X. SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Defendants' violations of 15 U.S.C. g 1692e

40. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

39 above.

41. Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. g 1692e which prohibits debt collectors from

using any "false, deceptive, or misleading representation or means in connection

with the collection of any debt."

42. Defendant Todd represented to Plaintiff's son, D.O., that Plaintiff's family

would lose their home if D.O. did not provide Todd with Plaintiff's cell phone

number. Such representation was false, deceptive, misleading, and in specific

violation of g 1692e(4) which prohibits the "implication that nonpayment of any

debt will result in.. . the seizure, garnishment, attachment, or sale of any

property.. .unless such action is lawful and the debt collector or creditor intends

to take such action." Because the alleged debt was not secured by Plaintiffs

home, and because the amount of the alleged debt was so far below the value of

the home, clearly seizure, attachment, or sale of the home was neither permitted

by law nor the intent of Defendants, and the threat of such to the 13-year-old son

of Plaintiff is specifically prohibited by g 1692e(4).

43. Defendant Todd represented to Plaintiff's parents-in-law that he was calling in

reference to a job Plaintiff had applied for. Plaintiff had not, in fact, applied for

any other job, and Defendant Todd falsely represented his identity as a potential
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employer and that the purpose of his call was for a job reference. Section

1692e(10) specifically prohibits "the use of any false representation or deceptive

means to collect or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain information

concerning a consumer." Defendant Todd's calls to Plaintiff's parents-in-law

violate this section of the FDCPA.

44. Defendant Todd also represented to Plaintiff's mother that he was calling in

reference to a job Plaintiff had applied for. Plaintiff had not, in fact, applied for

any other job, and Defendant Todd falsely represented his identity as a potential

employer and that the purpose of his call was for a job reference. Section

1692e(10) specifically prohibits "the use of any false representation or deceptive

means to collect or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain information

concerning a consumer." Defendant Todd's call to Plaintiff's mother violates this

section of the FDCPA.

XI SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Defendants' Violations of the Idaho Collection Agency Act

45. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

44 above.

46. Defendants' actions, as described in paragraphs 1-44 above, constitute

deception and unfairness in violation of Idaho Code 26-2229A(1), which requires

collection agencies and their agents to "deal openly, fairly, and honestly without

deception in the conduct of its business." Defendants' actions also violate Idaho

Code 26-2229(A)(9), which prohibits collection agencies and their agents from

"mak[ing] a representation.. . in connection with the.. . performance of any
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service authorized under this act, if the representation.. . is false or misleading

or has the tendency or capacity to be misleading."

XII EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress

47. Plaintiff repeats and realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1

46 above.

48. Between August and October 2009 Defendant Todd, while employed by

Premiere Credit, intentionally engaged in conduct toward Plaintiff that was

extreme and outrageous. Specifically, Defendant Todd spoke callously to Plaintiff

about Plaintiff's two deceased daughters. Defendant continued speaking

callously even after Plaintiff began crying and showing signs of emotional

distress. Defendant Todd's conduct caused severe emotional distress in Plaintiff.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

49. As a result of the above violations, the Defendants are liable to the Plaintiff

for declaratory judgment that defendants' conduct violated the FDCPA and the

Idaho Collection Agency Act, and Plaintiff's actual damages, statutory damages,

punitive damages, and costs and attorney's fees.

50. WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully prays that judgment be entered against

the Defendant for the following

a. Declaratory judgment that Defendants' conduct violated the FDCPA.

b. Declaratory judgment that Defendants' conduct violated the Idaho

Collection Agency Act.

c. Actual damages.
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d. Statutory damages pursuant to 15 U.S.C. g 1692k.

e. Punitive damages as allowed by state and federal law.

f. Costs and reasonable attorney's fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. g 1692k.

g. For such other and further relief as may be just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Please take notice that Plaintiff demands trial by jury in this action.

DATED this 17t day of August, 2010

/S/ Gu Price
Guy Price, ISB ¹3125
Attorney for Plaintiff

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Page 12 of 12


